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ANSWER

NOW COMES Respondent,PACKAGING PERSONIFIED,INC.

(“PPI”), by its attorneys,Holland & Knight LLP, for its Answerto the People

ofthe StateofIllinois’ Complaint,statesasfollows:

Countl

CONSTRUCTIONOF EMISSION SOURCESWITHOUT A PERMIT

1. This Complaintis broughton behalfofTHE PEOPLEOF THE STATE
OF ILLINOIS by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney Generalof the Stateof Illinois,
on herown motion andat therequestof theIllinois Environmental
ProtectionAgency (“Illinois EPA”) pursuantto thetermsandprovisionsof
Section31 of theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/31
(2002).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

1 of CountI.

2. Illinois EPA is anadministrativeagencyof the Stateof Illinois,
establishedby Section4 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2002),andis charged,inter
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alia, with the duty of enforcingtheAct, andregulationspromulgatedby the
Illinois Pollution ControlBoard(“Board”).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

2 of CountI.

3. At all times relevantto this complaint,RespondentPACKAGING
PERSONIFIED,INC., was,andis, an Illinois corporation,duly authorizedto
transactbusinessin the Stateof Illinois.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

3 of CountI.

4. TheRespondentowns andoperatesa polyethyleneandpolypropylene
film processingandprinting facility locatedat 246 KehoeBoulevard,Carol
Stream,DuPageCounty, Illinois (“Facility” or “Site”). DuPageCountyis
classifiedpursuantto thefederalCleanAir Act, 42 U.S.C.7401 etseq.,asa
‘severeozonenonattainmentarea’.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it owns andoperatesa facility

locatedat 246 KehoeBoulevard,Carol Stream,DuPageCounty, Illinois and

deniestheremainingallegationssetforth in paragraph4 of CountI.

5. As a regularpartof its operations,theRespondentextrudesandprints
plasticbags.Theextrusionprocessis operatedsevendaysperweek,24 hours
perday.Theprinting processis operated5 daysperweek, 16 hoursperday.
[E]xtruders,flexographicprinting, presses,curingovens,andother
equipmentat theSite(collectively“Emissionssources”)havethe capacityto
emit in excessof25 tons ofvolatile organicmaterial(“VOM”) peryear.The
Respondent’sactual2002 VOM emissionswereat least44 tons.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat partof its operationsinvolves the

extrusionoffilm into plasticbagsandprinting imageson plasticbags.

Respondentadmitsthat its extruders,flexographicprinting pressesand
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curingovenemitvolatile organicmaterial(“VOM”). Respondentfurther

admits that its 2002 AnnualEmissionReportfiled with the Illinois

EnvironmentalProtectionAgencyindicatedthat Respondent’sVOM

emissionsfor 2002were44.93tons. Respondentdeniestheremaining

allegationssetforth in paragraph5 of CountI.

6. The Respondentbeganinstallationof emissionssourcesat the Site on
a datebetterknownto Respondent,but prior to 1989. During theyears1989,
1992, and 1995,theRespondentinstalledfour flexographicprinting presses
and a curingoven. During theyears1992and1995, theRespondentinstalled
four extruders.At no time from thedatetheRespondentbeganinstallation of
theemissionssourcesuntil the time of filing this complaintdid the
Respondentobtain Illinois EPA constructionpermitsor operatingpermitsfor
theseemissionsources.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it installedcertainemission

sourcesduring theyears1992-1995without obtainingconstructionand

operatingpermitsfrom theIllinois EPA. Respondentdeniestheremaining

allegationssetforth in paragraph6 of CountI.

7. Section9 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9 (2002),provides,pertinentpart,as
follows:

No personshall:

(b) Construct,install, oroperateanyequipment,facility, vehicle,
vessel,or aircraft capableofcausingor contributingto air pollution or
designedto preventair pollution of anytypedesignatedby Board
regulations,without a permit grantedby theAgency,or in violation of
anyconditionsimposedby suchpermit.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

7 of CountI.
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8. Section3.26 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.26(2002),provides,asfollows:

“PERSON” is anyindividual, partnership,co-partnership,firm,
company,limited liability company,corporation,association,joint
stockcompany,trust, estate,political subdivision,stateagency,or any
otherlegalentity, or their legal representative,agentor assigns.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationsset forth in paragraph

8 of CountI.

9. The Respondent,an Illinois corporation,is a “person” asthat termis
definedin Section3.26of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.26(2002).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

9 of CountI.

10. Section201.142oftheBoardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code201.142,
provides,asfollows:

No personshall causeor allow the constructionof anynew emission
sourceor anynewair pollution controlequipment,without first
obtainingaconstructionpermit from theAgency,exceptasprovidedin
Section201.146.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationsset forth in paragraph

10 of CountI.

11. Section201.102of theBoardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code201.102,
provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

“EmissionSource”:anyequipmentor facility of atypecapableof
emitting specifiedair contaminantsto theatmosphere.

“New EmissionSource”:anyemissionsource,theconstructionor
modificationof which is commencedon or afterApril 14, 1972.
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ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationsset forth in paragraph

11 of CountI.

12. Respondent’sextruders,flexographicprinting presses,andovensare.
“emissionsource[s]”and“new emissionsource[s]”asthosetermsaredefined
in 35 Ill. Adm. 201.102.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

12 of CountI asit calls for a legalconclusion.

13. Section3.02of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.02(2002),containsthe following
definition:

“AIR POLLUTION” is thepresencein. the atmosphereof oneor more
contaminantsin sufficientquantities.andof suchcharacteristicsand
durationasto be injurious to human,plant, or animallife, to health,or
to property,or to unreasonablyinterferewith theenjoymentof life or
property.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits theallegationssetforth in paragraph

13 of CountI.

14. Section3.06 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.062002),provides,asfollows:

“CONTAMINANT” is anysolid, liquid, gaseousmatter,anyodor,or
anyform of energy,from whateversource.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

14 of CountI.

15. VOM emittedfrom emissionssourcesat theSite is a “contaminant”as
that termis definedin Section3.06 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.06(2002).

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationsin paragraph15 of

CountI asit callsfor alegal conclusion.
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16. Respondent’semissionssourcesarecapableof emittingVOM, a
contaminantinjurious to humanhealth,to theatmosphere,and thereforeare
capableof causingor contributingto air pollution.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthatcertainemissionsourcesat its

facility emit VOM. Respondentdeniesthe remainingallegationssetforth in

paragraph16 of CountI.

17. On variousdatesfrom 1989 to thepresent,theRespondentcommenced
constructionofthe emissionssourcesat theSite, without first havingapplied
for or obtainedconstructionpermitsfrom Illinois EPA. Respondentthereby
violatedSection9(b) of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(b) (2002),and 35 Ill. Adm. Code
201.142.Respondent’sviolationswerewillful, knowing, andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthatit constructedcertainemission

sourceswithout first havingapplied for or obtainedconstructionpermitsfrom

the Illinois EPA. Respondentdeniesthe remainingallegationssetforth in

paragraph17 of CountI.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
the Boardenteran orderin favor ofRespondentandagainstComplainant.

Count II

OPERATIONOF EMISSIONSOURCESWITHOUT A PERMIT

1-15. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein
paragraphs1 through9, andparagraphs11 through16, of CountI as
paragraphs1 through15 ofthis CountII.

ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through9, andparagraphs

11 through16, of Countlas paragraphs1 through15 of this CountII.
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16. Section201.143oftheBoard regulations,35 Iii. Adm. Code201.143,
provides,asfollows:

No personshall causeor allow theoperationof anynewemission
sourceor anynewair pollution controlequipmentof a typefor which a
constructionpermit is requiredby Section201.142without first
obtaininganoperatingpermit from theAgency,exceptfor suchtesting
operationsasmaybeauthorizedby theconstructionpermit.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits the allegationssetforth in paragraph

16 of CountII.

17. Sincethedateoffirst installationin 1989, the Respondenthas
operatedoneor moreemissionssourcesat theSitewithout havingfirst
appliedfor andobtainedoperatingpermitsfrom Illinois EPA. The
RespondenthastherebyviolatedSection9(b)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(b)
(2002),and35 Ill. Adm. Code201.143.Respondent’sviolationswerewillful,
knowing andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it operatedcertainemission

sourceswithout havingfirst appliedfor andobtainedoperatingpermitsfrom

the Illinois EPA. Respondentdeniestheremainingallegationssetforth in

paragraph17 of CountII.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
theBoard enteranorderin favor of RespondentandagainstComplainant.

Count III

FAILURE TO SUBMIT TIMELY ANNUAL EMISSION REPORTS

1-11. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein
paragraphs1 through6, paragraphs8 and 9, andparagraphs14 through16
of Count I asparagraphs1 through11 of. this CountIII.
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ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through6, paragraphs8

and9, andparagraphs14 through16 of CountI asparagraphs1 through11

of. this CountIII.

12. The Respondentdid not submitAnnual EmissionReportsto Illinois
EPAfor theyears1992, 1993, 1994, 1995, 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000 and
2001,until August8, 2002.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat by letterdatedAugust7, 2002 it

filed its Annual EmissionReportsfor 1995-2001with theIllinois EPA.

Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph12 ofCountIII.

13. Section9(a) of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002),provides,in pertinent
part, asfollows:

No personshall:

(a) causeor threatenor allow the dischargeor emissionof any
contaminantinto the environmentin anyStateso asto causeor tend
to causeair pollution in Illinois, eitheraloneor in combinationwith
contaminantsfrom othersources,or so asto violateregulationsor
standardsadoptedby theBoard underthis Act;

ANSWER: Respondentadmits theallegationssetforth in paragraph

13 of Count III.

14. Section201.302(a)oftheBoardregulations,35 Iii. Adm. Code201.302
(a) , provides,asfollows:

Theowneror operatorof anyemissionunit or air pollution control
equipment,unlessspecificallyexemptedin this Section,shallsubmit
to theAgency asa minimum, annualreportsdetailing thenature,
specificemissionunits andtotal annualquantitiesof all specifiedair
contaminantemissions;provided,however,that theAgencymay

-8-



requiremore frequentreportswherenecessaryto accomplishthe
purposeoftheAct andthis Chapter.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits theallegationssetforth in paragraph

14 of CountIII.

15. Section211.1950ofthe Boardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code211.1950,
provides,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

“Emissionunit” meansanypartor activity at a stationarysourcethat
emitsor hasthepotential to emit anyair pollutant.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationsset forth in paragraph

15 of Count III.

16. Section211.6370ofthe Boardregulationsprovides,asfollows:

“StationarySource”meansanybuilding, structure,facility, or
installation that emits or may emit anyair pollutant.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits theallegationssetforth in paragraph

16 of Count III.

17. Respondent’sfacility is a “stationarysource”asthat termis definedin
35 Ill. Adm. Code211.6370.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

17 of CountIII asit calls for alegal conclusion.

18. Theemissionssourcesat the Siteare“emissionunit[s]” asthat termis
definedin 35 Ill. Adm. Code 211.1950.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniesthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

18 ofCount III asit callsfor a legalconclusion.
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19. Section254.137 of theBoardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code254.137,
provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

a) All annualEmissionReportsaredueby May 1 of theyearfollowing
thecalendaryearin which theemissionstook place.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

19 of CountIII.

20. The Respondentis theowneroroperatoroftheVOM sources,and
thereforewasrequiredto submitAnnual EmissionReports,accordingto the
scheduledsetforth in 35 Ill. Adm. Code254.137, for eachcalendaryearfrom
1992until thepresent.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it hasfiled annualemission

reportswith theIllinois EPAfor 1995-2002.Respondentdeniesthe

remainingallegationssetforth in paragraph20 of Count III.

21. By failing to submitAnnual EmissionReportsfor theyears1992
through2001 until August8, 2002, RespondentviolatedSections201.302(a)
and254.137ofthe Boardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. CodeSections201.302(a)
and.254.137,andtherebyalsoviolatedSection9(a)of theAct, 415 ILCS
5/9(a) (2002).Respondent’sviolationswere willful, knowing, andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

21 of CountIII asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
the Board enteranorderin favor ofRespondentandagainstComplainant.
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CountTV

OPERATINGA MAJOR STATIONARY SOURCEWITHOUT A CAAPP
PERMIT

1-9. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein
paragraphs1 through8, andparagraph13, of CountIII asparagraphs1
through9 ofthis CountIV.

ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through8, andparagraph

13, of CountIII asparagraphs1 through9 ofthis CountIV.

10. Section39.5 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.52002),provides,in pertinent
part, asfollows:

5. ApplicationsandCompleteness

a. An owneroroperatorof ,a CAAPP sourceshallsubmitits
completeCAAPP applicationconsistentwith theAct and
applicable
regulations

* * *

6. Prohibition

* * *

b. After the applicableCAAPPpermit orrenewalapplication
submittaldate,asspecifiedin Subsection5 of this Section,no
personshalloperatea CAAPP sourcewithout a CAAPPpermit
unlessthecompleteCAAPPpermit or renewalapplicationfor
suchsourcehasbeentimely submittedto theAgency.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits theallegationssetforth in paragraph

10 of CountIV.
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11. Section39.5(1)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)2002),provides,in
pertinentpart, asfollows:

“CAAPP” meansthe CleanAir Act PermitProgramdeveloped
pursuantto Title V of the CleanAir Act.

“CAAPP permit”. . . meansanypermit issued,renewed,amended,
modifiedorrevisedpursuantto Title V of the CleanAir Act.

“CAAPP Source”meansanysourcefor which the owneror operatoris
requiredto obtain a CAAPPpermit pursuantto subsection2 of this
Section.

“Owneror operator”meansanypersonwho owns,leases,operates,
controls,or supervisesa stationarysource.

“Source”meansanystationarysource(or anygroupof stationary
sourcesthat arelocatedon oneor morecontiguousor adjacent
properties,andareundercommoncontrolofthe samepersonor
personsundercommoncontrol)belongingto a singlemajorindustrial
grouping.

“Stationarysource”meansanybuilding, structure,facility, or
installationthat emitsor mayemit anyregulatedair pollutant. .

“RegulatedAir Pollutant” meansthefollowing:

1. Nitrogenoxides(NOx) or anyvolatile organiccompound..

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

11 of CountIV.

12. Section39.5(2)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(2)providesin pertinent
part, asfollows:

a. Sourcessubjectto this Sectionshall include:

1. Any majorsourceasdefinedin paragraphc) of this
subsection.

c. For purposesof this Sectiontheterm “major source”meansany
sourcethat is:
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iii. A major stationarysourceasdefinedin partD ofTitle I of
the CleanAir Act including:

A. For ozonenonattainmentareas,Sourceswith the
potential to emit 100tons or moreperyearofvolatile
organiccompoundsor oxidesofnitrogenin areas
classifiedas“marginal” or. . . to emit 25 tonsor moreper
yearin areasclassifiedassevere.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

12 of CountIV.

13. Respondent’sfacility, locatedin a severeozonenonattainmentarea,
hasthe potentialto emit over25 tonsperyearof VOM andis a “major
stationarysource”asthat termis definedin Section39.5(2)of theAct, 415
ILCS 5/39.5(2)(2002),andthereforealsoa “CAAPP source”asdefinedin
Section39.5(1)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)(2002).

ANSWER: Respondentdeniesthe allegationsset forth in paragraph

13 of CountIV asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

14. Respondentowns andoperatesthe emissionsourcesat theSite, and
thereforeis the “owner andoperator”of “CAAPP source”asthosetermsare
definedin Section39.5(1)of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)(2002).

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

14of CountIV asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

15. Section39.5(5)of theAct, 415 ILCS 39.5(5)(2002),provides,in
pertinentpart, asfollows:

a. An owneror operatorof a CAAPPsourceshallsubmitits
completeCAAPPapplicationconsistentwith theAct and all applicable
regulations.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationsset forth in paragraph

15 of CountIV.
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16. Section270.201(b)oftheBoardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
270.201(b)provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

b) an owneror operatorof a CAAPPsourcewith thefollowing SIC
codesshallsubmitits initial completeCAAPP applicationnot later
than6 monthsafterthe effectivedateof theCAAPP: 26 (paperand
allied products);27 (printing andpublishing).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

16 of CountIV..

17. Respondentbeganoperationofemissionssourcesat the Site in 1989,
andwasrequiredto submitits CAAPP applicationby March 1, 1996.
However,theRespondentdid notsubmit a CAAPP applicationto Illinois
EPAuntil July 2, 2002.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it submittedits CleanAir Act

PermitProgramapplicationto theIllinois EPAby letter datedJuly 1, 2002.

Respondentdeniesthe remainingallegationssetforth in paragraph17 of

CountIV.

18. By failing to submitits applicationfor a CAAPPpermit by March 1,
1996,the RespondentviolatedSections39.5(5)and39.5(6)(b)ofthe Act, 415
ILCS 5/39.5(5)and5/39.5(6)(b)(2002),and35 Ill. Adm. Code270.201(b).By
violating 35 Iii. Adm. Code270.201(b),theRespondenttherebyalsoviolated
Section9(a) of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2002).Respondent’sviolationswere
willful, knowing, andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniesthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

18 of CountIV asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
theBoard enteran orderin favor ofRespondentandagainstComplainant.
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Count V

VIOLATION OF NEW SOURCEREVIEW

1-13. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein
paragraphs1 through9, andparagraphs11 through14, of•CountIV as
paragraphs1 through 13 of. this CountV.

ANSWER: Respondentreaflegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through9, andparagraphs

11 through14, ofCountIV asparagraphs1 through 13 of. this CountV.

14. Pursuantto authoritygrantedundertheAct, theBoardhas
promulgatedstandardsapplicableto majorstationarysourcesof
contaminants,at 35 III. Adm. Code,Part203 (“Board Major Source
regulations”).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

14 of CountV.

15. Section203.201ofthe BoardMajor Sourceregulations,35 Ill. Adm.
Code203.201,provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

In anynonattainmentarea,no personshall causeof allow the
constructionof a newmajorstationarysourceor majormodification
that is majorfor the pollutantfor which the areais designateda
nonattainmentarea,exceptasin compliancewith the part for that
pollutant. In areasdesignatedfor ozone,this prohibition shallapply to
newmajorstationarysourcesor majormodificationsofsourcesthat
emitvolatile organicmaterialsor Nitrogen Oxides.

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

15 of CountV.

16. Section203.203of theBoardMajor SourceRegulations,35 Iii. Adm.
Code203.203,provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:
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a) A constructionpermit is requiredprior to actualconstructionof

amajornewsourceor majormodification.

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

16 of CountV.

17. Section203.301oftheBoardMajor Sourceregulations,35 Iii. Adm.
Code203.301,provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

Section203.301LowestAchievable Emission Rates:

a) Forany source,lowestachievableemissionrate(LAER) will be
themorestringentrateof emissionsbasedon thefollowing. .

* * *

b) Theowneror operatorofa newmajorstationarysourceshall
demonstratethat the controlequipmentandprocessmeasuresapplied
to the sourcewill produceLAER.

* * *

d) Theowneror operatorshallprovidea detailedshowingthat the
proposedemissionlimitation constitutesLAER. .

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

17 of CountV.

18. During theyears1992, 1994, and 1995, theRespondentcommenced
constructionofemissionsourcesat theSite,a newmajor source,without first
havingappliedfor andobtaineda constructionpermit from Illinois EPA. The
RespondenttherebyviolatedSection203.203,andtherebyalsoviolated
Section9(a) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002),and35 Ill. Adm. Code203.201.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it constructedcertainemission

sourceswithout first havingappliedfor andobtainedconstructionpermits
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from theIllinois EPA. Respondentdeniestheremainingallegationssetforth

in paragraph18 ofCountV.

19. TheRespondentoperateda newmajor stationarysourcewithout
havingfirst demonstratedthat controlequipmentandprocessmeasuresat
its facility compliedwith LAER. RespondenttherebyviolatedSection203.301
of theBoard.Major Sourceregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code203.301,and
therebyalsoviolatedSection9(a) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2002)and35
Ill. Adm. Code203.201.Respondent’sviolationswerewillful, knowing, and
repeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

19 ofCountV asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
theBoardenteranorderin favor of RespondentandagainstComplainant.

Count VI

EMISSION REDUCTION MARKET SYSTEMVIOLATIONS

1-13. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,
paragraphs1 through 13 of CountIII asparagraphs1 through 13 of this
CountVI.

ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through13 of CountIII as

paragraphs1 through 13 ofthis CountVI.

14. Duringthefive monthperiod,May 1 until September30, of eachyear
from at least1997 until thetime of filing this complaint,Respondent’sfacility
emittedmorethan 10 tons of VOM.
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ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat its VOM emissionsduring the

five-monthperiodMay 1 - September30, for theyears2000,2001 and2002

weremorethantentons eachyear. Respondentdeniesthe remaining

allegationssetforth in paragraph14 of CountVI.

15. Respondentdid not submitannualemissionreportslisting seasonal
emissionsfor the years2000, 2001,and 2002,until May 16, 2003.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits that it submittedto the Illinois EPA

its seasonalVOM emissionsfor 2000, 2001 and2002. Respondentdeniesthe

remainingallegationssetforth in paragraph15 of CountVI.

16. Pursuantto therequirementsof Section9.8 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/9.8
(2002),theBoardhasestablishedregulationscreatingandregulating
alternativeair pollution controls,including theEmissionReductionMarket
System(“ERMS”). RegulationsrequiringparticipationandmanagingERMS
creditsarefoundat 35 Iii. Adm. Code,Part205 (“ERMS regulations”)

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationsset forth in paragraph

16 of CountVI.

17. Section205.130of theERMSregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code205.130
provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

“Annual EmissionsReport” meansthe reportsubmittedto theAgency
annuallypursuantto 35 Iii. Adm. Code254.

“Baselineemissions”meansa participatingsource’sVOM emissionsfor
the seasonalallotmentperiodbasedon historicaloperationsas
determinedunderSubpartC of this Part.Baselineemissionsshallbe
thebasisof theallotmentfor eachparticipatingsource.

“CAAPP” meansthe CleanAir Act PermitProgram,pursuantto
Section39.5 oftheAct (415 ILCS 5/39.5].

- 18 -



“Chicagoozonenonattainmentarea”meanstheareacomposedof Cook,
DuPage,Kane,Lake,McHenry,andWill CountiesandAux Sable
Townshipand GooseLake Townshipin Grundy Countyand Oswego
Townshipin Kendall County. “New participatingsource”meansa
sourcenot operatingprior to May 1, 1999,locatedin the Chicagoozone
nonattainmentarea,that is requiredto obtaina CAAPPpermit and
hasor will haveseasonalemissionsof at least10 tons ofVOM.

“Participatingsource”meansa sourceoperatingprior to May 1, 1999,
locatedin the Chicagoozonenonattainmentarea,that is requiredto
obtaina CAAPPpermit andhasbaselineemissionsof at least10 tons,
asspecifiedin Section205.320(a)of this Part,or seasonalemissionsof
at least10 tonsin anyseasonalallotmentperiodbeginningin 1999.

“Seasonalallotmentperiod” meanstheperiodfrom May 1 through
September30 of eachyear.

“Seasonalemissions”meansactualVOM emissionsat asourcethat
occurduring a seasonalallotmentperiod.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

17 of CountVI.

18. From at least1997until thepresent,Respondent’sfacility had
seasonalemissionsof at least10 tonsofVOM, andwasa “participating
source”asthat termis definedin 35 Ill. Adm. Code205.130.The Respondent
is ownerandoperatorof a “participatingsource”.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat its VOM emissionsduring the

five-monthperiodMay 1 throughSeptember30 for years2000-2002werein

excessof 10 tonseachyear. Respondentdeniestheremainingallegationsset

forth in paragraph18 of CountVI.

19. Section205.310ofthe ERMS regulations,35 Iii. Adm. Code205.310,
provides,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

a) The owneror operatorof eachparticipatingsourceor new
participatingsourceshallsubmitto theAgency anERMS application
in accordancewith thefollowing schedule:
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1) For a participatingsourcewith baselineemissionsofat least10
tonsof VOM, asdeterminedin accordancewith Section205.320(a)of
this Subpart,by March 1, 1998;

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

19 of CountVI.

20. Section205.300of theERMSregulations,35 Iii. Adm. Code205.300
provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

Section 205.300 SeasonalEmissionsComponent of the Annual
EmissionsReport

a) Foreachyearin which thesourceis operational,theowneror
operatorof eachparticipatingsourceandnewparticipatingsource
shallsubmit,asa componentofits AnnualEmissionsReport,seasonal
emissionsinformationto theAgencyfor eachseasonalallotmentperiod
after theeffectivedateofthis Part in accordancewith thefollowing
schedule:

1) For eachparticipatingsourceor newparticipatingsource
that generatesVOM emissionsfrom lessthan 10 emissionunits,by
October31 of eachyear;and

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

20 of CountVI.

21. Section254.501oftheBoardregulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code254.501,
provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

Section 254.501 Contents of a SeasonalEmissionsReport

a) The owneror operatorof a sourcesubjectto the seasonal
emissionsreportingrequirementsfor ERMSrequiredby 35 Iii. Adm.
Code205.300mustprovidethefollowing information:

1) Sourceidentificationinformation:

A) Sourcename,physicallocationandmailing
address;
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B) NameofResponsibleOfficial; and

C) Sourcecontacttelephonenumber.

* * *

b) The owneror operatorof a participatingsourceor
newparticipatingsourceunder35 Ill. Adm. Code205
mustprovidetotal seasonalactualemissionsofhazardous
air pollutants(HAPs)that arealsoVOM for thefollowing
HAP5:

* * *

c) The owneror operatorof eachparticipatingsource
ornewparticipatingsourceunder35 Iii. Adm. Code205
must provideresponsesto thefollowing questions
regardingVOM HAPsfor theseasonalallotmentperiod
addressedin the SeasonalEmissionsReport:

1) To yourknowledge,did emissionsofany
HAP increaseat your sourcedueto receiptor
expectedreceiptof additionalAllotment Trading
Units (ATUs)?

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

21 of CountVI.

22. Respondentwasrequiredsubmitits ERMSbaselineapplicationto
Illinois EPA by March 1, 1998. By failing to submitERMSbaselineat any
time up to the’ dateof filing this Complaint,RespondentviolatedSection
205.310 oftheERMS regulations,andtherebyalsoviolatedSection9(a)ofthe
Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2002).Respondent’sviolations werewillful, knowing
andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

22 of CountVI asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

23. Respondent’sfacility containslessthan 10 emissionssources.
Respondentwasthereforerequiredto submitseasonalemissioninformation
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for theyears2000,2001, and2002, conformingwith 35 III. Adm. Code
Sections205.300and254.501,by October31stof eachrespectiveyear.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniesthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

23 ofCountVI asit callsfor a legalconclusion.

24. By failing to submitseasonalemissioninformationfor anyyearuntil
May 16, 2003, Respondentviolated 35 Ill. Adm. Section9(a) oftheAct, 415
ILCS 5/9(a)(2002).Respondent’sviolationswere willful, knowing, and
repeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

24 of CountVI asit calls for a legal conclusion.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
the Boardenteranorderin favorof Respondentand againstComplainant.

CountVII

VIOLATION OF FLEXOGRAPHIC PRINTING RULES:
FAILURE TODEMONSTRATE COMPLIANCE

1-9. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein,
paragraphs1 through8, andparagraph13, of CountIII, asparagraphs1
through9 of this. CountVII.

ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through8, andparagraph

13, of CountIII, asparagraphs1 through9 ofthis. Count VII.

10. From at leastApril, 1992until thepresent,Respondenthasapplied
flexographicprinting inks at theits facility havinga VOC contentaslisted
below:

FLEXOGRAPHIC PRINTING INK * VOC CONTENT (% by volume) **
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SuntexH/R Silver 67.5

Sunsheen021 Orange 57.69

SunsheenMadrasOrange 59.3

\~IethylViolet Base 62.97

SunsheenPantPurple 71.3

~/C CarbozolePurple 86.62

[* Tradenamesof SunChemicalCompany]
[** VOC contentdoesnot includewateror otherexcludedsubstances]

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthat it appliedor appliesflexographic

printing inks identified in paragraph10 of CountVII. Respondentdeniesthe

remainingallegationssetforth in paragraph10 of CountVII.

11. From atleastSeptember27, 1993 until thetime offiling of this
Complaint,the Respondentfailed to performtestingto demonstrate
compliancewith theVOC limitation applyingto flexographicprinting
operations,failed to collectandrecordink, usageandVOM content,and
failed to recordthedaily weightedaverageofVOM contentof flexographic
inks usedat the Site.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationssetforth in paragraph

11 of CountVII.

12. Pursuantto authoritygrantedundertheAct, the Boardhas
promulgatedregulationslimiting organicmaterialemissionsin theChicago
area,foundat 35 Ill. Adm. Codepart218 (“O/M” Emissionregulations”).

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

12 of CountVII.

13. Section218.103ofthe O/M Emissionregulations,35 Iii. Adm. Code
218.103,provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

Applicability
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Theprovisionsofthis Part shallapply to all sourceslocatedin the
Chicagoarea,which is composedof Cook, DuPage,Kane,Lake,
McHenryandWill Counties,andAux SableTownshipandGooseLake
Townshipin GrundyCountyandOswegoTownshipin Kendall County.

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationsset forth in paragraph

13 of CountVII.

14. Section218.106oftheO/M emissionregulationsprovides,in pertinent
part, asfollows:

Compliance Dates

a) Except asotherwise provided in this Section or as otherwise
provided in a specificSubpart ofthis Part, compliancewith the
requirements of all rules is required by July 1, 1991. .

* * *

ANSWER: Respondentadmits the allegations setforth in paragraph

14of Count VII.

15. SubpartH oftheO/M emissionregulations,titled PRINTING AND
PUBLISHING (“FlexographicPrinting rules”), regulatesorganicmaterial
content,materialusagereporting,andrecordkeepingfor theflexographic
printing industrywithin thegreaterChicagoarea,including DuPageCounty,
Illinois.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits the allegationssetforth in paragraph

15 of CountVII.

16. Section218.402of theFlexographicPrinting rules, 35 Iii. Adm. Code
28 1.402provides,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

a) The limitations ofSection218.401ofthis Part apply to all
flexographicandrotogravureprinting lines at a subjectsource.Sources
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with flexographicand/orrotogravureprinting lines aresubjectsources
if:

* * *

2) Theflexographicandrotogravureprinting lines(s). . . at
thesourceshavea potential to emit (25tons] or moreof VOM
peryear.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitsthe allegationssetforth in paragraph

16 of CountVII.

17. Respondent’sfour flexographicprinting lineshavethepotential to emit
morethan25 tons ofVOM peryear,andare“subject sources”asthat termis
definedandusedin 35 Ill. Adm. Code218.402.TheRespondentis the “owner
andoperator”ofsubjectflexographicprinting emissionsources.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits that its four flexographic printing

linesemitVOM. Respondentdeniestheremainingallegationssetforth in

paragraph17of CountVII.

18. Section218.401of theBoardPrinting Rules,35 Iii. Adm. Code218.401
[effectiveSeptember27, 1993],provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

a) No owneror operatorof a subjectflexographic,packaging
rotogravureor publicationrotogravureprinting line shallapplyat any
time anycoatingor ink unlesstheVOM contentdoesnot exceedthe
limitation specifiedin either subsection(a) (1) or (a) (2) below.
Compliancewith this Sectionmustbe demonstratedthroughthe
applicablecoatingor Ink analysistestmethodsandprocedures
specifiedin Section218.105(a)of this partandtherecordkeepingand
reportingrequirementsspecifiedin 2 18.404(c)of this Part. . .

1) Forty percentVOM by volumeof thecoatingandink
(minuswater andanycompoundswhich arespecifically
exemptedfrom thedefinition of VOM), or

* * *
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b) No owneror operatorof a subjectflexographic. .. printing line
shallapplycoatingsor inks on thesubjectprinting line unlessthe
weightedaverage,by volume,VOM contentof all coatingsandinks as
appliedeachdayon thesubjectprinting line doesnot exceedthe
limitations specifiedin eithersubsection(a)(1) [as determinedby
subsection(b)(1)1 or subsection(a)(2) (asdeterminedby subsection
b(2)J. Compliancewith this subsectionmustbedemonstratedthrough
theapplicablecoatingor ink analysistestmethodsandprocedures

specifiedin Section218.105(a)ofthis Part andthe recordkeepingand
reportingrequirementsspecifiedin Section218.404(d)of. this Part.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationssetforth in paragraph

18 of CountVII.

19. From September27, 1993until the dateoffiling this complaint,the
Respondentappliedinks with a VOM contentin excessof forty percent,
without performinganyanalysisof ink usageor otherwisedemonstrating
compliancewith Section218.401oftheFlexographicPrinting Rules, 218.401.
TheRespondenttherebyviolated 35 Ill. Adm. Code218.401,andtherebyalso
violatedSection9(a) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2002). Respondent’s
violations werewillful, knowing, andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentadmits that it applied inks with a VOM

contentin excessof 40%. Respondentdeniesthe remainingallegationsset

forth in paragraph19 of CountVII.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat
theBoardenteranorderin favor ofRespondentandagainstComplainant.

Count VIII

VIOLATION OF FLEXOGRAPHIC PRINTINGRULES:
FAILURE TO MAINTAIN RECORDS

1-17. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referenceherein
paragraphs1 through17, of CountVII, asparagraphs1 through17 ofthis
CountVIII.
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ANSWER: Respondentreallegesandincorporatesby reference

hereinits answersandobjectionsto paragraphs1 through17, of CountVII,

asparagraphs1 through17 ofthis CountVIII.

18. Section218.404of theBoardPrinting Rules [effectiveSeptember27,
1993],provides,in pertinentpart, asfollows:

Recordkeeping and Reporting

* * *

c) Any owneror operatorofa printing line subjectto the
limitations of Section218.401of this Part. . . shall complywith the
following:

2) On andaftera dateconsistentwith Section2 18.106of
this Part, or on and aftertheinitial start-update,theowneror
operatorof aprinting line subjectto the limitations ofSection
218.401of this Part. . . shall collectandrecordall of the
following informationeachdayfor eachcoatingline and
maintaintheinformationat thesourcefor a periodofthree
years:

A) Thenameandidentificationnumberofeach
coatingandink asappliedon eachprinting line.

B) The VOM contentof eachcoatingand ink as
appliedeachday on eachprinting line.

* * *

d) Any owneror operatorofa printing line subjectto the
limitations of Section218.401of this Part. . . shall comply with the
following:

2) On andaftera dateconsistentwith Section218.106of
this Part, or on and aftertheinitial start-update,the owneror
operatorofa printing line subjectto thelimitations of Section
218.401of this Part. . . shall collect andrecordall ofthe
following informationeachdayfor eachprinting line and
maintaintheinformation at thesourcefor a periodof three
years:.
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A) Thenameandidentificationnumberof each
coatingandink asappliedon eachprinting line.

B) TheVOM contentand thevolumeof eachcoating
andink asappliedeachdayon eachprinting line.

C) The daily-weightedaverageVOM contentof all
coatingsandinks asappliedon eachprinting line.

ANSWER: Respondentadmitstheallegationsset forth in paragraph

18 of CountVIII.

19. From atleastSeptember27, 1993,until thetime of filing this
complaint, theRespondentfailed to collect,record,and maintainrecordsof
thevolume,name,identificationnumber,VOC content,anddaily weighted
VOC contentofinks andcoatingsusedandappliedat its facility. Respondent
therebyviolatedSection218.404(c)and(d) of theBoardFlexographic
PrintingRules, 35 Ill. Adm. Code218.404(c)and(d), andtherebyalso
violatedSection9(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2002).Respondent’s
violationswerewillful, knowing, andrepeated.

ANSWER: Respondentdeniestheallegationsset forth in paragraph

19 of CountVIII.

WHEREFORE,PackagingPersonified,Inc., respectfullyrequeststhat

theBoardenteranorderin favor of RespondentandagainstComplainant.

Respectfullysubmitted,

PACKA

By:

MarkJ. Steger,Esq.
Holland& Knight LLP
131 S.DearbornStreet,30thFloor
Chicago,Illinois 60603
(312)263-3600
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

MarkJ..Steger,oneoftheattorneysfor PackagingPersonified,Inc.,
statesthat hecausedacopyoftheforegoingNoticeof Filing andAnswer to be
servedvia U.S.Mail beforethehourof5:00 p.m.on January16, 2004to:

DorothyGunn,Clerk
Illinois Pollution Control Board
100 WestRandolphStreet
Suite11-500
Chicago,Illinois 60601

MarkJ. Steger,Esq.
Holland & Knight LLP
131 S. DearbornStreet,30thFloor
Chicago,IL 60603
(312) 236-3600
# 723226_vi

ChristopherJ. Grant
AssistantAttorney General
Office oftheAttorney General
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. Randolph,20th Floor
Chicago,IL 60601

MarkJ. Steg~/ (j

- 29 -


